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  Monday 

12/02/18 

4.30 pm 

Monday 12 February 2018 4.30 pm 

SGI Nicky Beechey received a phone call from Paul Barrett. He explained that his father 

had recently passed away (end of January) and since then he had become aware that 
his father had gambled away $450,000 of his life savings at a handful of venues in 

Kaiapoi. 

PB said that his mother was unaware of the extent of her late husband's gambling 

behaviour and she was shocked and upset to learn that their life savings had gone. 

PB said his father had not gambled at the Casino. PB said he himself works at the 
SkyCity Casino as an Executive Chef, and he asked me to use his work email for 

communications. NB also sought a private email address.  

NB asked how many venues were involved and which ones were they? PB said he had 

four years worth of bank statements that he could send through to us. 

PB said he was not trying to get the money back or anything like that. He just wants to 

ensure that something like this does not happen to anyone else.  

NB said that she will refer this complaint to our Christchurch office which will follow up 

with the relevant venues and societies. PB said he had just been in Christchurch with his 
mother but he didn't wish to raise it with the Christchurch authorities as his mother was 

feeling very upset and sensitive as all this had happened on her doorstep.  

Document 1
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PB sent the bank statements on 13-02-18. See documents tab. 

14-02-18 9.40 am

NB mentioned this complaint to Gareth Bostock, Director Gambling Compliance. 

Gareth asked NB to send him an email with bullet points about the complaint for him to 
send to Communications as it could represent a media risk if the family were to go 

public with their concerns at a future date. NB said there was no indication of this at 

this point as the family are still very upset and grieving, but acknowledged that could 
change in the future. NB mentioned that confidentiality for the family at present was 

very important. 

14-02-18 10.00 am

NB phoned Stuart Fuller to give him the background on this complaint before referring 
to Christchurch office via IGP. NB mentioned the family, especially the mother,  

, is very upset and sensitive about the situation they find themselves in.  
9(2)(a)
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The total value of cash withdrawals at venues for the period April to December 2017 amounts to 
$101,494.20, of which, $63,893 was withdrawn at one venue.  
 
Summary of our findings 
A risk based analysis was carried out and seven venues and one club were identified as those being 
of greatest risk based on amount withdrawn, frequency of withdrawals, and frequency of visits to 
the venue.  All eight venues were visited and the Venue Manager (VM) spoken to. We did the 
following at each of the venues: 
 

 Met with the VM in order to ascertain their knowledge of Barrett’s visits and spending at 
the venue; 

 Reviewed relevant society’s harm min policy applicable to the venue; 

 Reviewed log/incident books in order to determine whether any entries were made in 
regard to Barrett; and  

 Reviewed exclusion process to ascertain whether Barrett has been excluded from any of 
these venues. 
 

We have found the following: 
 

 All the venues, except two, knew Barrett; 

 No venue has recorded any observations about Barrett in its logbook;  

 No venue followed its society’s policy on EFTPOS withdrawal limits;  

 In cases where a venue had its own guidelines on EFTPOS withdrawal limits, those 
guidelines were not followed ; and 

 Barrett was not excluded from any of the venues.  
 
All the venues claimed Barrett had never displayed any signs of anxiety, distress, or being upset:  
 

 “He was always well-dressed, tidy, well spoken, polite, and friendly”.  

 “He was never agitated. He never did anything that would draw attention to himself”.  

 “He was definitely not he last person to leave the venue”.  

 “He never portrayed himself as a problem gambler”.   

 “His wife has some disability, he needed time out”.  

 “We’re not there to infringe on people’s personal lives”. 
 
As to no limits on EFTPOS withdrawals, the venues claimed:  
 

 “People withdraw money to pay rent, buy meat or to play TAB”.  

 "It's a cashless society. Sometimes people need to withdraw some money for pocket 
money”. 

 
Findings at venues   
 

) 
 
From April to December 2017 Barrett  
 

 visited the venue 93 times; 

 total withdrawn $63,893.10;  

 average withdrawn per visit $687.02; and 

 average number of withdrawals per visit 6.24. 
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Our analysis reveals that  stands out from all the other venues, in terms of 
amount withdrawn, frequency of withdrawals, and frequency of visits to the venue.  
 
On one particular day, Barrett made 27 EFTPOS withdrawals, totalling $3,349.50, that is, on average, 
one withdrawal every six or seven minutes based on a three-hour visit (as claimed by VM).  
 
Despite the frequency and amount of withdrawals, the only interaction undertaken was to hand 
Barrett the HPA wallet size pamphlet when they first noticed how much Barrett played. 
 
According to the VM, they knew Barrett quite well: “We knew him more than a customer”.  
 
VM stated Barrett was their highest spender and would gamble more than other patrons. 
 
VM said Barrett’s demeanour was always the same, whether he lost or won. His attitude never 
changed, always a happy customer, engaging and socialising with staff and other customers. 
 
VM said Barrett was “a really nice guy, made friends with other patrons, he really enjoyed being 
here”. “We never saw him upset or angry”.  
 
VM said “we have good regulars here, both on the machines and at the bar. We look after them, we 
engage with all of them, they are not just a name and a number, they are wanted here”. 
 
VM said the  rep used to call in at the venue every fortnight, and they discussed 
Barrett. They knew Barrett was a regular and big spender. 
 
No log book entry about Barrett. 
 

 harm minimisation policy stipulates that “Multiple ATM/EFTPOS withdrawals are 
a main contributor to catastrophic loss” and “to be aware of players approaching staff for several 
ETPOS transactions in one playing session”. The venue has not heeded this advice provided in the 
policy, nor has the venue determined its own policy or guidelines in this regard. 
 
According to HPA’s materials, two or more times cash withdrawals are a general sign of problem 
gambling. This venue claimed Barrett displayed no other signs that suggested to staff that he was a 
potential problem gambler, however, we believe withdrawals on such a scale as Barrett did should 
be escalated and alert staff to take note and intervene appropriately. 
 
The VM at this venue did not do enough to ascertain whether Barrett was a potential problem 
gambler.  Barrett was allowed to make frequent multiple cash withdrawals via EFTPOS to fund his 
gambling at the venue almost without question. Staff had the opportunity to intervene every time 
he withdrew money, and only on one occasion was he presented with a pamphlet regarding 
responsible gambling despite Barrett withdrawing money 27 times in one visit. 
 

 
 
From April to September 2017 Barrett  
 

 visited the venue 37 times;  

 total withdrawn $12,666; 

 average withdrawn per visit $342.32; and   

 average number of withdrawals per visit 3.27. 
 rep  who turned up during the middle of the interview said it was the 

9(2)(a)

9(2)(a)

9(2)(a)

9(2)(a)
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frequency rather than the amount of EFTPOS withdraws that would ring an alarm bell. 
 
No log book entry about Barrett. 
 

 
 
From July to September 2017 Barrett  
 

 visited the venue 9 times;  

 total withdrawn $3,563; 

 average  withdrawn per visit  $395.88; and 

 average number of withdrawals per visit 3.78. 
 
VM also said Barrett never had any declines, “I thought he had the money he could afford to 
spend”, and the VM indicated that he had no reason to consider him to be a problem gambler”.  
 
After discussing about the number of withdrawals and average daily spending of $395.88 over a 3-
month time period, VM agreed it was excessive gambling. This shouldn’t have been acceptable”. 
“I’m the one who is ultimately responsible”.  
 
No log book entry about Barrett. 
 

) 
 
From April to November 2017 Barrett  

 

 visited the venue 8 times;  

 total withdrawn $4,105.40; 

 average withdrawn per visit $513.18; and 

 average number of withdrawals per visit 3.88. 
 

 VM claimed the reason why they didn’t remember him was that quite a few of 
Barrett’s transactions at the venue were on ATM, rather than via EFTPOS, so there was no direct 
face to face contact with bar staff in those instances.  
 

VM also claimed that the week beginning 13 November 2017 was Canterbury's cup week, extremely 
busy at the venue, it may well be that multiple staff had served Barrett during that week, hence no 
logbook entries. 
 
No log book entry about Barrett. 
 

 
 
From April to November 2017 Barrett  
 

 visited the venue 17 times;  

 total withdrawn $4,097; 

 average withdrawn per visit $241; and 

 average number of withdrawals per visit 2.53. 
 
No log book entry about Barrett. 
 

9(2)(a)
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From April to August 2017 Barrett  
 

 visited the venue 6 times;  

 total withdrawn $2,542.50; 

 average withdrawn per visit $423.75; and 

 average number of withdrawals per visit 4.12. 
 
VM Agreed Barrett’s gambling was “excessive, concerning”.  
 
VM said he would be disturbed if it wasn’t picked up when Barrett made so many withdrawals and 
spent them all on the machines, I’ll have to look at the roster”.  
 
VM said to me “it was good you came today. If there were any lapses, we will bring it up at our next 
staff meeting”. 
 
No log book entry about Barrett. 
 

 
 
From June to November 2017 Barrett  
 

 visited the venue 6 times;  

 total withdrawn $1,182.30; 

 average withdrawn per visit $197.05; and 

 average number of withdrawals per visit 2. 

  
The Duty Manager (DM) has known Barrett for 10 years from a previous  

 
 
DM said Barrett lost his house in the earthquakes, and was renting for a while. 
 
DM said Barrett’s , Barrett “needed some time out, away from home. He 
always looked tired. I often saw him reading a book in his white Nissan Primera, for a long period of 
time”. 
 
No log book entry about Barrett. 
 

 
 
Our analysis shows Barrett 
 
• visited the club once, in May 2017; 
• made 12 cash withdrawals; 
• total withdrawn $1,237.  
 
General Manager (GM) of  said Barrett was not a member of their club, but could be a 
member of , and if so, he was allowed to come here, because those clubs are affiliated 
with each other. Or, Barrett could have been singed in by a member of . 
 
GM said he would be disappointed if no one had picked it up when Barrett made 12 withdrawals in 

9(2)(a)
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one day. GM said they have since enhanced their harm min training. 
 
No log book entry about Barrett. 
 
ATM withdrawals  
 
There are six other venues that Barrett visited and withdrew money primarily from ATM machines.  
The frequency of withdrawals and amounts withdrawn at those venues are not of great concern in 
this investigation.  Accordingly, those venues will be approached with a view to discussing what, if 
any, measures are in place to monitor ATM usage with a view to lifting practice in this area. 
 
At the , the VM suggested that when the venue is busy, monitoring of the ATM is 
difficult.  This raises concerns at any venue that uses stand-alone ATM machines. 
 
This was also discussed with the VM at the .  He stated that he had already 
identified an issue with the location of the ATM, and was considering relocating it to allow staff 
better monitoring of its use.   
 
Applicable legislation (Gambling Act 2003) 
 
69A Continuing obligations of corporate society in relation to class 4 venue licence  
 
A corporate society that holds a class 4 venue licence must, in relation to class 4 gambling 
conducted at the class 4 venue for which the licence is held, ensure that, at all times, 

(g) the risk of problem gambling is minimised. 
 
308 Requirement to develop policy for identifying problem gamblers 

(1) The following persons must develop a policy for identifying problem gamblers: 
(a) every holder of a class 4 venue licence. 

 
       (4) A venue manager or the holder of a casino operator’s licence, or a person acting on 
behalf of either of those persons, must take all reasonable steps to ensure that the policy is 
used to identify actual or potential problem gamblers. 

 
309 Exclusion order may be issued to problem gambler identified under section 308 

(1) The venue manager or the holder of a casino operator’s licence, or a person acting on 
behalf of either of those persons, must, after identifying a person under section 308(4) who 
he, she, or it has reasonable grounds to believe is a problem gambler, approach the person 
and offer information or advice to the person about problem gambling. 

 
Precedent cases 
 

 
 
An investigation was undertaken recently into a similar matter that occurred at this club whereby a 
patron gambled and lost large amounts of money. The result of that investigation was the 
suspension of the club’s licence for a period of five days based primarily on the failure to implement 
harm minimisation requirements at the club. 
 
Advice required from OAB 
 
Confirmation of the actions recommended below. 

 

9(2)(a)

9(2)(a)

9(2)(a)
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Background 

In February 2018, Gambling Compliance received a complaint from Paul Barrett, son of 

Morgan Barrett. Paul said his father Morgan recently passed away (January 2018). While 

tidying up Morgan’s state of affairs, the family found Morgan had gambled away a lot of 

money on pokie machines in Canterbury, to the tune of $450,000, from 2014 to 2017. 

 

Paul said his mother was unaware of the extent of her late husband's gambling behaviour 

and she was shocked and upset to learn that their life savings had gone. Paul later 

mentioned that his mother is  and his late father was her care 

giver. 

 

Paul said he was not trying to get the money back, he just wants to ensure that 

something like this does not happen to anyone else. 

 

Paul subsequently provided his late father’s bank statements and photos to us. 

 

Morgan was said to be working part time at Godfreys Northwood. He was 68 years of 

age. 

 

Analysis of bank statements 

 

We have analysed the bank accounts and transferred all the relevant information into a 

spreadsheet in order to identify the level of spending at each venue. 

One of the saving accounts, for the period of 2014 to 2017, had an opening balance of 

$450,020 as at February 2014. It ended up in an overdraft of $1.86 as at December 

2017. This account was mainly used to transfer credit into Morgan’s day-to-day accounts 

to fund his spending at the venues. 

 

Statements for two day-to-day bank accounts were provided for the period of April – 

December 2017. From these bank statements, 10 c4 venues and two clubs in the 

Canterbury region were identified, which Morgan had frequently visited, and made the 

most cash withdrawals.  

 

The analysis of the bank statements show that there is a pattern of multiple withdrawals 

via EFTPOS or ATM at the venues identified, and Morgan would visit as many as seven 

venues on the same day.  

 

The total value of cash withdrawals at venues for the period April to December 2017 

amounts to $101,494.20, of which, $63,893 was withdrawn at one venue.  

 

Summary of our findings 

 

A risk based analysis was carried out and seven venues and one club were identified as 

those being of greatest risk based on amount withdrawn, frequency of withdrawals, and 

frequency of visits to the venue.  All eight venues were visited and the Venue Manager 

(VM) spoken to. We did the following at each of the venues: 

 

 Met with the VM in order to ascertain their knowledge of Morgan’s visits and 

spending at the venue; 

 Reviewed relevant society’s harm min policy applicable to the venue; 

Investigation Report 

Harm Minimisation Practices re Morgan Barrett  
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 Reviewed log/incident books in order to determine whether any entries were 

made in regard to Morgan; and  

 Reviewed exclusion process to ascertain whether Morgan has been excluded from 

any of these venues. 

 

We have found the following: 

 

 All the venues, except two, knew Morgan; 

 No venue has recorded any observations about Morgan in its logbook;  

 No venue has a policy about EFTPOS withdrawal limits or followed its society’s 

policy on this; and 

 Morgan was not excluded from any of the venues.  

 

All the venues claimed Morgan had never displayed any signs of anxiety, distress, or 

being upset:  

 

 “He was always well-dressed, tidy, well spoken, polite, and friendly”.  

 “He was never agitated. He never did anything that would draw attention to 

himself”.  

 “He was definitely not he last person to leave the venue”.  

 “He never portrayed himself as a problem gambler”.   

 “His wife has some disability, he needed time out”.  

 “We’re not there to infringe on people’s personal lives”. 

 

As to no limits on EFTPOS withdrawals, the venues claimed:  

 

 “People withdraw money to pay rent, buy meat or to play TAB”.  

 "It's a cashless society. Sometimes people need to withdraw some money for 

pocket money”. 

 

These visited venues are 

 

   

 

Our analysis reveals that  stands out from all the other venues, in 

terms of amount withdrawn, frequency of withdrawals, and frequency of visits to the 

venue. 

 

From April to December 2017 Morgan  

 

 visited the venue 93 times; 

 total withdrawn $63,893.10;  

 average withdrawn per visit $687.02; and 

 average number of withdrawals per visit 6.24. 

 

On one particular day, Morgan made as many as 27 EFTPOS withdrawals, totalling 

$3,349.50, that is, on average, one withdrawal every six or seven minutes based on a 

three-hour visit (as claimed by VM).  

 

According to the VM at , they knew Morgan quite well: “We knew 

him more than a customer, “he talked to us about his job, his son who works at SkyCity, 

and his family”. “Morgan liked to drink Heineken”. “He was a smoker”.  

 

“Morgan would get a couple of $100 EFTPOS withdrawals a night along with a drink and 

occasionally get fish and chips off the children’s menu”. 

 

VM stated Morgan was their highest spender and would gamble more than other patrons, 

and said they handed to Morgan the HPA wallet size pamphlet when they first noticed 

how much Morgan played. 

9(2)(a)

9(2)(a)

9(2)(a)
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VM said Morgan’s demeanour was always the same, whether he lost or won.  

According to the VM, Morgan won a lot of money too, but he was not “over the moon” 

when he won jackpots, his attitude never changed, always a happy customer, engaging 

and socialising with staff and other customers. 

 

VM said Morgan was “a really nice guy, made friends with other patrons, he really 

enjoyed being here”. “We never saw him upset or angry”.  

 

VM said “we have good regulars here, both on the machines and at the bar. We look 

after them, we engage with all of them, they are not just a name and a number, they are 

wanted here”. 

 

VM said the  rep used to call in at the venue every fortnight, and they 

discussed Morgan. They knew Morgan was a regular and big spender. 

 

According to the VM, Morgan’s longest stay at the venue was three hours on one visit. He 

never left the venue and returned later, only ever leaving to go outside for a smoke. 

 

  

 

From April to September 2017 Morgan  

 

 visited the venue 37 times;  

 total withdrawn $12,666; 

 average withdrawn per visit $342.32; and   

 average number of withdrawals per visit 3.27. 

 

The VM of  said Morgan normally came in on Mondays, mostly once a 

week, perhaps twice a week. Morgan came in around 5-6pm, “looks like he was calling in 

on his way back home, and wouldn’t stay long, usually for 1-1.5hours. He was definitely 

not the last person to leave. He liked Heineken light. He was a heavy smoker, bought 

cigarettes from the bar”. 

 

VM said Morgan was a polite, quiet, and reserved person. He was never agitated. He 

never did anything that would draw attention to himself. He kept to himself. “The only 

reason I distinctly remember him was because he said he worked for Godfreys and we 

talked about vacuum cleaners”. He didn’t show any signs of anxiety. “He was not 

unfriendly, not overly friendly either”. 

 

When asked was there any policy on EFTPOS withdrawals, VM said no, because “people 

withdraw money to pay rent, buy meat in the freezing works or to play TAB”.  

 

When asked was there anything done when Morgan made 15 withdrawals in one day, VM 

said she would have to check who was on duty that day and find out whether anything 

was said to Morgan or anything was done. 

 

There were no logbook entries about Morgan.  

 

 rep  turned up during the middle of the interview. He said the 

VM was very genuine, one of his good operators. “Pokies have been a peripheral part of 

the business”.  

 

 said it was the frequency rather than the amount of EFTPOS withdraws that would 

ring an alarm bell. 

 

  

 

From July to September 2017 Morgan  

 

9(2)(a)
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 visited the venue 9 times;  

 total withdrawn $3,563; 

 average  withdrawn per visit  $395.88; and 

 average number of withdrawals per visit 3.78. 

 

The VM said Morgan was well dressed, well spoken, nice, polite, and outgoing, “you 

never see him depressed or anything like that”. “I don’t infringe on people’s private life”. 

 

VM said Morgan wouldn’t stay long, usually for one hour or so. He played the machines 

and drank Heineken light, smoked cigarettes, but didn’t have meals at the venue.  

 

VM said in his memory Morgan usually had a maximum of three EFTPOS withdrawals, no 

more than $60 each time. “He would never go over $180 on the machines”.  

 

 “He never looked stressed when he cashed out. Never looked upset”.  

 

“He is just a normal guy”. “He just come and go”. “He would never do anything that I 

would be upset about the machines”.  

 

He stated that one of his ex-employees had spoken to Morgan a while back about his 

gambling asking if he should be doing this (gambling) and Morgan had not returned for a 

long time. 

 

When asked if there was any policy on EFTPOS withdrawals, either on number of times or 

amount each time, VM said no, because “it’s a cashless society now, sometimes people 

need to withdraw money for pocket money”. “We never have big problems in terms of 

EFTPOS withdrawals here as this is a small pub”. 

 

When asked if  has any policy on withdrawals, VM said no, “it’s really up to 

the venue’s discretion”. 

 

When asked if he had people coming in and getting $400-500 dollars a night out of the 

EFTPOS, VM stated that he has no one getting that amount of money out ever. 

 

When presented with the spreadsheet about Morgan’s spending at the venue – up to six 

separate $100 cash withdrawals on one visit, VM said he “wouldn’t have thought of 

anything like that, I need to speak to the girls about it”.  

 

VM also said Morgan never had any declines, “I thought he had the money he could 

afford to spend”. “I had no reason to doubt he is a problem gambler”. The spreadsheet 

also showed that Morgan visited the venue at least five times in September 2017. 

 

VM was asked if he thought that the amount of withdrawals Morgan made was excessive, 

he said he didn’t know he couldn’t afford it so didn’t worry about him. 

 

VM was asked if he thought it was reasonable to allow Morgan to have that many 

withdrawals over a very short time period up to one withdrawal every ten minutes given 

Morgan only stayed for an hour usually. VM stated that there was no policy and he didn’t 

know it was that many. 

 

On one day Morgan made as many as six withdrawals which amounted to $718.  

 

There were no logbook entries about Morgan. 

 

After discussing about the number of withdrawals and average daily spending of $395.88 

over a 3-month time period, VM agreed it was excessive gambling. This shouldn’t have 

been acceptable”. “I’m the one who is ultimately responsible”.  
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  

 

From April to November 2017 Morgan  

 

 visited the venue 17 times;  

 total withdrawn $4,097; 

 average withdrawn per visit $241; and 

 average number of withdrawals per visit 2.53. 

 

The VM said Morgan was always pleasant to deal with. “He didn’t portray himself as a 

problem gambler, he was not a guy who spent a lot, didn’t come in every night. He was 

not there to get his money back. He was always tidy, quite friendly, never seen him 

distressed or anything. He never came across as a customer you would worry about”. VM 

said Morgan was not a big drinker either (drinking Heineken light only), he always 

seemed to be in control of himself.  

 

When asked if there was any policy on EFTPOS withdrawals, either on number of times or 

amount each time, VM said they would talk to the customer after a few withdrawals. VM 

said Morgan always came in after work time, it was so busy at the bar, “I don’t 

remember him getting lots of cash out from the till”. 

 

When presented with the spreadsheet which shows on 3 occasions Morgan had as many 

as 5 or 6 withdrawals in one day, VM said it may well be that different girls have served 

him when he visited.  

 

There are quite a few gambling related entries in the venue’s Harm Min Incident Forms 

(log book), but no recordings about Morgan. 

 

  

 

From April to November 2017 Morgan  

 

 visited the venue 8 times;  

 total withdrawn $4,105.40; 

 average withdrawn per visit $513.18; and 

 average number of withdrawals per visit 3.88. 

 

 VM claimed the reason why they didn’t remember him was that quite a 

few of Morgan’s transactions at the venue were on ATM, rather than via EFTPOS, so no 

direct face to face contact with bar staff.  

 

The ATM is directly in front of the bar so all staff have full view of the ATM machine and 

persons using it. 

 

They also claimed that the week beginning 13 November 2017 was Canterbury's cup 

week. It was extremely busy at the venue, it may well be that multiple staff had served 

Morgan during that week, hence no logbook entries. 

 

  

 

From April to August 2017 Morgan  

 

 visited the venue 6 times;  

 total withdrawn $2,542.50; 

 average withdrawn per visit $423.75; and 

 average number of withdrawals per visit 4.12. 
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VM said there was no set policy on EFTPOS withdrawals. “If it was hard and fast 

gambling, they would set it at 3 times, a total of $300”, “it depends on the service 

host/duty manager’s judgement”.  

 

When asked what they would do if they noticed any unusual behaviors, VM said they 

would talk to the patron, offer advice, give PGF’s helpline number, and hand out PHA 

pamphlets, etc.  

 

VM said Morgan didn’t show any signs of agitation. “If he did, we would have noted it in 

the incident book. Morgan had a calm demeanour, no change of behaviour, pleasant, not 

rude or abrupt”. He would stay for about 2-2.5 hours on one visit. 

 

There were a few gambling related entries in the venue’s log book, but no recordings 

about Morgan. 

 

When presented with the spreadsheet which shows on one occasion Morgan had six 

withdrawals, totalling $736, VM said it was “excessive, concerning”.  

 

VM said he would be disturbed if it wasn’t picked up when Morgan made so many 

withdrawals and spent them all on the machines, I’ll have to look at the roster”.  

 

VM said to me “it was good you came today”. It there were any lapses, we will bring it up 

at our next staff meeting”. 

 

  

 

From June to November 2017 Morgan  

 

 visited the venue 6 times;  

 total withdrawn $1,182.30; 

 average withdrawn per visit $197.05; and 

 average number of withdrawals per visit 2. 

 

The Duty Manager (DM) at  has known Morgan for 10 years. She 

knew Morgan from a previous venue in Kaiapoi  

 

 

DM said Morgan liked Heinekens, worked at Godfreys Northwood. He was a smoker. 

Morgan wore “a beautiful black ring, with a stone, it stood out”. 

 

Morgan was always well dressed, well spoken, polite. “I’ve never seen him in such casual 

clothes” (referring to the photo of Morgan taken in Lake Tekapo). He never seemed to 

have a problem”.  

 

DM said Morgan lost his house in the earthquakes, and was renting for a while. 

 

DM said Morgan’s , Morgan “needed some time out, away from 

home. He always looked tired. I often saw him reading a book in his white Nissan 

Primera, for a long period of time”. 

 

DM said Morgan would have cash withdrawals of $100. He would have a break, that’s 

why he would go out for a smoke. “I enjoy talking to him over cigarettes”.  

 

Both VM and DM said the limit on EFTPOS withdrawals would be $200-$300, “except 

when you’re buying TAB vouchers. If you are going $300, you’re definitely pushing it”.  

 

DM said Morgan knew from the previous bar she used to work that DM would only allow 

3 or 4 cash outs, that’s why Morgan knew he wouldn’t get more than that from DM at 

this venue. 
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Spreadsheet shows Morgan had on one occasion 4 cash withdrawals at the venue. 

 

There were no log book entries about Morgan.  

 

  

 

Our analysis shows Morgan 

 

 visited the club once, in May 2017; 

 made 12 cash withdrawals; 

 total withdrawn $1,237.  

 

General Manager of  said Morgan was not a member of their club, but could 

be a member of , and if so, he was allowed to come here, because those 

clubs are affiliated with each other. Or Morgan could have been singed in by a member of 

. 

 

When asked about cash withdrawal limits, GM said normally 3 times of $100. 

 

There were no logbook entries about Morgan. GM said he would be disappointed if no one 

had picked it up when Morgan made 12 withdrawals in one day. GM said they have since 

enhanced their harm min training.  

 

Other venues 

 

There are another six venues identified where all or most of the transactions were made 

via ATM rather than EFTPOS. These venues will be visited at a later stage. 

 

Recommendations 

 

1. Decide the appropriate next course of action against , via 

OAB, which could include sanctions against the venue, such as suspension of 

venue licence or considering the suitability of the VM, or both, given the level of 

Morgan’s spending and inaction from the venue; 

2. Issue warning letters to  and  reminding them of 

their failings in looking after and protecting their patrons against gambling harm;  

3. Follow up educational visits, or phone calls to , 

, and  to reiterate our 

expectations in looking after and protecting problem gamblers; and 

4. At a later stage, visit the last six venues, especially about ATM withdrawal 

monitoring issues. 
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Transcript 
 

23 August 2018, 9:51 am 

Department of Internal Affairs 
120 Hereford Street 
Christchurch 

Present: Marty Greentree, Senior Investigator, Regulatory Services, 

Department of Internal Affairs, Ashneel Kumar, Investigator, 

Regulatory Services, Department of Internal Affairs,  

 

 

 

 

MG Good morning.  My name is Marty Greentree, I’m a Senior 

Investigator for the Department of Internal Affairs.  Today’s 

date is Thursday the 23rd of August 2018, and the time now 

is 9:51 am, and we’re here at the Department of Internal 

Affairs offices at 120 Hereford Street in Christchurch and we 

have a meeting scheduled with .  Before we 

start, I’ll just do a round of introductions.  I have my 

colleague here with me today Ashneel Kumar. 

AK My names Ashneel Kumar, Investigator with the Regulatory 

Services at the Department of Internal Affairs in Auckland. 

MG Okay, and we have  here as well... 

 Yeah,  in 

Kaiapoi.  
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 It means gaming machines, pokie machines, as they’re 

generally referred to in bars and restaurants. 

MG Yeah, alright, and how long have you been involved in 

hospitality, owning bars and Class 4? 

 Bars, restaurants, all my life, we started the  

 

, where we first use ah ... or ran machines.  

Admittedly that was about twenty years ago. Ah we now 

moved ... spent three years working there, um eighteen 

venue, eighteen machine site.   

 

  

MG Okay, so is , is that your first Class 4 venue? 

 Owning, yes. 

MG Owning, okay.  You’ve had prior involvement working at 

venues that have had Class 4 machines, right. 

 Yes. 

MG Alright, I think what I might do, if it makes sense, is I’ve got 

some notes here from Sonya and Charles. 

 Okay. 

MG Maybe if I go through those notes, because you’ve already 

had a conversation about a lot of this stuff, and we’ll talk 

through it, and maybe you could confirm whether or not you 

recall. 

 Cool.  

MG So Sonya spoke to you about your interaction with Morgan 

Barrett as a customer.  Tell me about Morgan Barrett? 
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 Ah Morgan, hell of a nice guy. 

MG Yeah. 

 Known him in the venue oh nine months to year I suppose,  

he ... everyone knew him by name, we served him, looked 

after him.  I hate using that customer, I prefer to use the word 

guest, in our venue, in our home.  He would come in, drink, 

dine, ah and gamble, all the staff knew him by name, all the 

staff would go and see him when they arrived on shift.  Hello 

Morgan, how you going today. 

MG Yeah. 

 And spend time interacting with him.  People would yeah 

look after him. 

MG Alright, so when do you recall first meeting him or seeing 

him? 

 That’s impossible for me to give a date sorry, I ... yes, yeah. 

MG That’s alright. 

 Any date I would give you on that would be a pure guess. 

MG Yeah, but you knew him for about nine ... nine to twelve 

months? 

 Nine months to a ... a year and a half, I’d put in that sort of 

ball park area, yeah. 

MG Okay. How often would you say he came to your venue? 

 Um on average recollection, ah three times a week, yeah. 

MG Three times a week, yeah. 

 Maybe more, ah maybe less. 
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MG Yeah, was there a particular time of the day that he would 

come in there? 

 No, always ... always varied. 

MG Varied, yeah. 

 Yeah. 

MG And what about the venue itself, what hours are you open? 

 Um um licensed from eight in the morning until ah eleven 

o’clock, Sunday through to Thursday, and till one am Friday 

and Saturday.  We traded um eleven o’clock Monday to 

Friday and nine in the morning Saturday/Sunday, week ... ah 

weekends.  

MG Yeah. 

 And um ah till late.  We’re more of a restaurant than a bar.  

MG Okay. 

 So closing, you know, on average, if you leaving there by ten 

thirty, it’s about average. 

MG Alright, and the pokie machines? What times are the gaming 

areas open, is that the same as .. 

 When the venue is open, they’re open. 

MG You’re recollection from what I’m reading here is you said 

that in terms of your knowledge of Morgan’s gambling,  it 

was a couple of hundred dollar withdrawals a night plus 

drinks. 

 Yes, yes, yeah. 
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MG Alright. There’s notes here that say that you said to Sonya 

that Morgan’s demeanor was always the same, whether he 

lost or won.   said Morgan won a lot of money too, 

but he was not over the moon when he won jackpots.  His 

attitude never changed, always a happy customer, engaging 

and socialising with staff and other customers.” Is that your 

recollection? 

 Correct, yeah, yeah. 

MG How many staff do you have at your venue? 

 Ah ten to twelve, at the moment we’ve got eleven. 

MG Ten to twelve. 

 Um back a year ago I think it may have been a couple more.  

but around the sort of eleven/twelve mark. 

MG Okay, eleven/twelve mark. 

 That includes chefs in the kitchen though. 

MG Sonya made you aware of all the EFTPOS transactions at 

your venue. 

 Yes. 

MG That they discovered in the bank statements. 

 Yes. 

MG Yeah.  Were you aware of the extent of those transactions? 

 No. 

MG No? 

 No. 
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MG So knowing Morgan in your venue, as you did, initially you 

said it was three, two or three withdrawals, you ... you never 

noticed ... ? 

 On ... on ... on average, yeah, yeah. 

MG On average, yeah. 

 Sometimes it might be more, sometimes it might be less 

yeah. 

MG Okay, there was ... there was some occasions where there 

were... on one occasion there was twenty seven EFTPOS 

transactions made in one day at your venue. 

 Yes, yeah. 

MG Yes.  

 I was made aware of that, yes. 

MG Made aware of it, yeah.  Is that something that you would 

expect your staff to pick up on? 

 Um, as a ... as an individual member of staff, yeah. 

MG Yeah. 

 I ... I would, I would. 

MG Yeah. 

 Um, um it’s yeah I would. 

MG Yeah, so with your Harm Minimisation training,  has 

provided some of the documentation and your training 

records that for your venue. [09.06 – 09.15 pause] For the 

recording I’m showing you a  register of 

persons who have completed Harm Minimisation training.  
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MG Yeah. 

 We have a gaming um ah help card we’ve blown up to A3 

and put on the back of our fridge door in the office, so it’s 

always the sort of cues or what to look are always in our 

minds. 

MG Yeah. 

 Um yeah. 

MG Okay. 

 So just on that, the training, the video he’s talking about is 

the HPA powerpoint presentation videos. 

 Yes. 

MG Yeah.  

 Yeah. 

MG  also kindly provided that to me. 

 Yes, that’s it. 

MG This is it... I’m showing you a copy of that. Does that look 

familiar to you? 

 Yes. 

MG Yeah. 

 Perhaps not in that format, because I’ve ... yeah. 

 Yeah, yeah. 

MG Yeah. 

 I’ve shrunk it. 
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MG Yeah. 

 you’re ... you’re seeing their ... their mood and demeanour 

change and ... and those are cues for us to um to ah interact 

more and then make an assessment. 

MG Yeah, where does multiple EFTPOS transactions, where 

does that fit into Harm Minimisation? 

 I don’t believe it did, in the ... in the booklet that we’ve been 

provided, it’s ... it’s not really there, um it does say about um 

trying to withdraw two or more times, ah that kind of to me 

was meaning trying to withdraw, meaning trying to, not 

successful. 

MG Yeah. 

 Um, um, um when you’re looking at patterns of behaviour, if 

... if someone’s not showing those and you’re still interacting 

with them, then they’re obviously comfortable with what their 

doing, was ... 

MG Is that your recollection from the training you’ve had? 

 Um, I ...  

MG The reason why I ask is just that ... 

 Yeah, yeah. 

MG That view seems inconsistent with the resources and the 

training material for the choice not chance ... 

 Well we ... you’re ... if someone ... if someone is um 

gambling heavily. 

MG Yeah. 
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 Ah we ... we engage with them, ah. 

MG Yeah. 

 And we make sure it is a choice they’re making, and not 

them taking a chance. 

MG Yeah. 

 So I ... I believe it is, um ... if um if someone there is 

gambling ah gambling what ... ah the amount to me wasn’t 

the issue his demeanour was and he was always happy, 

always cheerful, we engaged with him. 

MG There’s ... there’s some specific slides in the training and it 

says you know, how do you ... how do you identify a problem 

gambler, it’s not just demeanour. 

 Oh there’s lots of them yeah. 

MG And there’s ... there’s videos in there that I’m sure you’ve 

been through with  

 Yeah. 

MG It’s quite a comprehensive training package in there.  Some 

video in there specifically about multiple EFTPOS 

transactions, so you’re telling me that that wasn’t a trigger to 

you, that that’s not a concern for you or didn’t register as a 

general sign? 

 No, in the ... in the ... in the ... in the training, it’s a ... it’s a 

general sign. 

MG Yeah. 

 And you need three or more to upgrade it to a strong sign. 
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MG Yeah. 

 Um when you’re seeing one ... one sign or so you’re ... 

you’re engaging with them, you’re ... 

MG Yeah. 

 You’re ... you’re talking with them, you’re interacting with 

them. 

MG Okay.  So just to be clear, in the training that you’ve had, 

prior to  coming on board from say last year, to the end 

of ... end of last year, um you ... you haven’t been trained to 

identify multiple EFTPOS transactions as ... as a concern or 

as a sign, a general sign that you should be aware of? 

 Oh it’s hard to remember a year and a half ago or a year 

ago, I’m sorry. Um, um, yeah I understand what you’re 

saying, yeah. 

MG Yeah, I mean this is ... are you familiar with this document?  

This is the  Gambling Harm Minimisation 

policy.  

 Yes we have that, we’ve ah ... we’ve been through that ah 

that’s in our um we call it our big red folder, yes. 

MG Yeah, okay, I just might draw your attention to a particular 

page here and it’s ... it’s authored by  and it does 

exclusively talk about that issue.  Oh [15.35 – 15.42 pause] 

it’s on page seven, I’ll give it to you in a second, there’s a 

statement that says: “Venue staff recognise when a gambler 

displays any of the general or strong signs of harmful 

gambling, staff can distinguish between general and strong 

signs. Staff understand that while one general sign on its 

own may not mean someone’s gambling is causing them 
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harm. These behaviours are good indicators of gambling 

harm. Staff understand that if a gambler is displaying any 

strong signs, these behaviours are very likely to indicate 

gambling harm.” And then the policy says that, “we will meet 

this through”, and the first point says: “staff can identify the 

general signs of problem gambling, gambles for hours 

without a break, ... wants to continue at closing time, 

becomes rude, angry or aggressive to staff or patrons.  

Makes two or more EFTPOS withdrawals or leaves venue to 

get more money. Shows signs of frustration or distress while 

playing.” It’s just that first point there.  

 [16.40 – 16.50 pause]. Yes, yeah. 

MG Yeah, so did you ... I mean what’s your view on that because 

this is pretty clear to me that if someone is ... you know 

twenty seven is a pretty extreme example. 

 Yes, totally agree. 

MG And you know that’s the highest but there’s many 

transactions that were more than ten, there’s a twenty times 

in one night transaction, twenty two times, in total I think  

we’re roughly from about April last year to the end of last 

year, he spent about sixty three thousand dollars at your 

venue.  

 Yes. 

MG I’ve filtered some of the info from his bank statements there, 

for the recording I’m showing a spreadsheet of EFTPOS 

transactions at . Those are all 

EFTPOS transactions. None of them are ATM.  [17.58 – 

18.15 pause] Looking at that, how do you think that 
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reconciles with your Harm Minimisation training and 

obligations? 

 That’s a high number. 

MG Yeah. 

 I fully agree with that. 

MG Yeah. 

 Um every time, well with all our customers, not just Morgan, 

all of our customers. 

MG Yeah. 

 We interact with them, we engage with them.  I’m not just 

talking about a um a general walk around the room, how we 

going, we actually come round and talk to him face to face. 

MG Yeah. 

 Um, um that was ... that’s one sign there, he showed no 

other signs, no other signs.  Um, he would stop for a chat at 

the bar, he would have dinner um he would stop and talk to 

staff who was having a dinner break.   

MG Yeah. 

 Not just for a five second, how are you going. 

MG Yeah. 

 You know, ten, twenty, thirty minutes, you know.  He showed 

no other signs of a problem gambler.   

MG Yeah. 

 Ah we would engage with him, talk to him. 
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MG Did any of your other staff have any concerns about Mr 

Barrett or about his gambling? 

 No. 

MG No? 

 No. 

MG You’re saying to me that you ... yourself, you weren’t aware 

of the frequency of his EFTPOS transactions? 

 No, I wasn’t, no. 

MG No.  Were there any other staff, any of the other employees 

were they aware of the volume of EFTPOS transactions that 

were occurring? 

 I think as a group, no. 

MG No. 

 No. 

MG Alright ..so why, why? I mean you said you engaged with 

him, there’s mention in the notes from Sonya, from your 

previous discussion, that he was known as one of your 

biggest spenders or...? 

 He ... known ... known as ... as one of our biggest customers, 

yeah. 

MG Yeah. 

 As in time in the venue, yeah, yeah, um ... 

MG And at one stage, I understand um from the notes of your 

meeting with Sonya, you did provide him with an HPA 

pamphlet? 
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 Yes.  I think ... I think most of our customers who have been 

in our venue and ... and for a long period of time, as in 

months, weeks, type thing, we’ve all been spoken to about  

Harm Minimisation ah pamphlets and putting up posters, 

those sorts of things yeah. 

MG What ...... who gave out the pamphlet? 

 I ... I don’t ... don’t recall, sorry. 

MG How did it come to your attention, how were you made aware 

that the pamphlet had been given out? 

 We ... we have staff briefs um every day. 

MG Yeah. 

 Ah we talk about um everything in the business, um, how the 

food’s going, customers, um opening/closing times, 

everything. 

MG Yeah. 

 Including gambling, it’s a part of the business. 

MG The incident book, you’ve got a log book? 

 Yes. 

MG At what point would you enter someone’s name in there?  

What do you use that book for? 

 Ah, we enter ... we’ve gone through a bit of a review of what 

we do, how we do it. 

MG Yeah. 
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 Um we would enter things in there that were of a concern.  

Um we have two log books, one’s a gaming book, one’s our 

um in-house book for um alcohol ... alcohol related matters.  

MG So you were saying that you have staff briefs where you talk 

about ... so have you discussed Mr Barrett at your staff briefs 

last year? 

 He’s been ... he would have been mentioned yes, yes.  

MG Yeah. 

 Um ... um and it would have been mentioned about how ... 

how ... all customers ... how ... how is he. 

MG Yeah. 

 Is he happy, content, how’s he ... how’s he ... how’s he 

managing, you know. 

MG Okay. 

 Is he ... is he showing signs of ... yeah. 

MG So at those briefs, the short story is that no one said or 

expressed any concerns about his gambling? 

 No. 

MG None of your staff? 

 No. 

MG [22.17 – 22.22 pause] And because you didn’t consider him 

a problem gambler, he wasn’t noted in the book? 

 Correct, yeah. 
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MG [22.32 – 22.37 pause] And you’re saying that no one, to your 

knowledge was aware of the volume of transactions that 

were occurring? 

 No. 

MG Yeah.  Would you expect your staff to be aware of that? 

Because I mean this is some pretty serious activity, you 

know and sure he’s going up to the bar there’s a hundred 

and eight dollars and fifty cents, probably buying a Heineken 

and ...  

 Yeah. 

MG With getting a hundred dollars cash out.  Does that surprise 

you, that none of your staff made you aware of this? 

 Yes, those numbers did surprise me when I saw them yeah, 

yeah. 

MG Yeah, but would you have an expectation that your staff 

would have made you aware of that volume of transactions? 

 I have an expectation that if my staff are concerned about 

any customer for any reason that I’d know about it, yes. 

MG Yeah, but none of them made you aware of Mr Barrett’s 

spending. 

 No, no.  

MG Just to clarify, because it looks, on the face of it anyway that 

you failed to follow the policy on EFTPOS withdrawals and 

that sort thing in terms of identifying it. 

 I don’t’ totally agree with that. 

MG You don’t agree with it? 
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 I don’t totally agree with it, no. 

MG Okay, what part don’t you agree with? 

 Um, in there, can you show me the policy part that you’re 

referring to please? 

MG That’s all part of the ... 

 Yeah, yeah, so that’s one sign.   

MG Yeah. 

 We’ve got to review many signs. 

MG Yeah. 

 Um, we’ve reviewed many signs and we’ve ... yeah. 

MG I guess the concern is that that concentration of one sign 

should, I would have a reasonable expectation that that 

would trigger some kind of notation in your log book or 

should trigger a minute ... a bullet point in your briefings by a 

staff member.  What’s your view on that? 

 I don’t have a view on that sorry. 

MG Yourself, your other staff members did they know Mr Barrett 

personally? 

 No one ... oh that’s a fine line to walk.   

MG Yeah. 

 Um we know all our ... it’s our ... in the industry it is a very ... 

so a business/personal, we’re all invested in our customers, 

um in the bar we’re obviously ah, ah ... we engage with 

them, we know things about them. 
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 Yeah, yeah. 

MG Um but you told her from a point of view of him being a good 

customer... 

 We ... we talk to all of our reps, whether it be the . 

MG Yeah. 

 Whether it be beverage reps, about all ... all aspects of our 

business, um, um and because he’s one of our bigger 

customers. 

MG Yeah. 

 In the bar, not just on gambling but beer, time, we interact 

with him whatnot. 

MG Yeah. 

 Ah we talk about it. 

MG Okay,  have provided me with the rep notes 

and they record all the visits that have occurred and the 

notes that are associated with those visits, such as you know 

the purpose of the visit and if there’s anything to do with 

issues with customers and other compliance related issues.  

But I don’t see any mention of Morgan Barrett on these 

notes.  Do you recall when ... you’re saying you can’t 

remember that far back? 

 I wouldn’t have a clue, sorry. 

MG Okay.  How many times do you think you spoke with  

about Morgan? 

 I recollect at least once but it could be more. 
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MG Once. 

 Um ... 

MG [27.44 -27.50 pause] And you’re saying he was ... would he 

be the biggest customer you’ve had or are there other people 

as well that ...? 

 Are you ... you meaning money or time? 

MG Money and time, both. 

 Um hard to give a straight answer to that. 

MG Yeah. 

 Um I would say yes, um ... 

MG Yeah. 

 But it’s ... it’s ... 

MG Yeah. 

 Not an easy one to give you a straight answer, but I’d say 

yes. 

MG Yeah.  Have you had a consistent, I mean you’ve got a staff 

list of people who are trained here, have you had much staff 

turnover and that sort of thing? 

 Um of our senior staff, yeah a couple, um we’ve had um on 

those ... on that form that you showed me. 

MG Yeah. 

 Ah a couple of staff that have left since ... ah since then. 

MG Okay.  [28.30 – 28.47 pause] So you spoke to me about 

some of the things um that you do well at the venue in terms 
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of monitoring problem gambling.  You engage with your 

customers, you’re quite personal, you’re saying all your staff 

do that. Um you check on their wellbeing, see how they are. 

What other systems or processes do you have in place to 

monitor that Harm Minimisation in the gaming room and what 

sorts of things, checks do you do? 

 We’re in there every ah fifteen minutes. Um we’re doing ... 

MG Yeah. 

 ... I think it’s called sweeps of the venues, what’s the ... the 

lingo is, so we’re in ... we’re in there and it’s not just the 

gaming room, it’s the whole venue, but the gaming room, 

we’re walking in there, we’re straightening up chairs, 

collecting glasses, we’re talking to our people, um we’re not 

just saying words to them, we’re actually hearing a response 

back and there’s dialogue to ... both ways. 

MG Yeah. 

 We’re asking about their days, um we want to make sure that 

um when we go in there, our ... our people are stopping what 

they’re doing, looking at us and talking to us. 

MG Yeah. 

 Um you know it’s a ... we’re a people business. 

MG Right.  I haven’t been to your venue before, but you’re staff 

have a line of sight to the gaming room and yeah? 

 Yes, absolutely. 

MG And do you have CCTV? 

 Yes we do. 
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MG Yeah, how often is that monitored? Is that in a place where 

you can or staff can see it or..? 

 Yes, oh yes in the office, yes. 

MG But you conduct fifteen minute sweeps? 

 Yes. 

MG Do you record any of these processes anywhere else, other 

... like are these normal ordinary sort of checks that you do? 

 These are normal everyday checks. 

MG Yeah. 

 From um it’s just what we do. 

MG Yeah. 

 It’s what ... it’s what we all do.  Um ah there has been ah ... 

yeah, it’s what we do. 

MG But do you have a process at your venue where you mark off 

if someone’s done a sweep or ... 

 No we don’t. 

MG Nothing like that? 

 No. 

MG Or ... okay.  Um ... 

 Just ... just on that, on the smart operating system that they 

have in the venue, it has a message that comes up their ... at 

every fifteen minutes that they must do a sweep. 

MG Okay. 
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 And that ... that doesn’t disappear until they’ve actually done 

a sweep and pushed the button as well. 

MG Oh I see, I see. 

 Yeah. 

MG Alright, so you have to reset that? 

 Yeah. 

 That’s right. 

MG Yeah.  How often ... how long has that process been in 

place? 

 Um, two months, a month? 

 No, it would have been only ... it would be about three 

months. 

MG Three months, alright, so Mr Barrett’s activity was prior.  But 

alright. [31.21 – 31.34 pause]. So just to clarify the incident 

book, the log book for gaming, what do you actually use that 

for again? 

 To log incidents. 

MG Incidents, yeah, what would be the threshold for an incident 

in your ... your understanding? 

 Um, well a couple of examples, we had a ... a lady who was 

um ... um gambling, um her ... she must have been in her 

forties.  Her and her mother were in there.  Ah we were 

made aware they weren’t comfortable.  Ah we monitored 

them, we saw them on the phone, ah making comments and 

being upset. 
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MG Yeah. 

 And we engaged with them, we spoke with them, um gave 

them help cards, suggested taking a break. 

MG Yeah. 

 That made the log book.  I ah excluded a lady um a couple of 

months ago um, ah for her behaviour. Um sat her down, 

gave her a coffee, we spoke about you know how things are 

going, what not, suggested a break. 

MG Yeah, yeah. 

 And um I ... I recommended that she ah look at the options of 

a ... you know a ... a period of time um and she chose herself 

to I think it was a two year break, I think it was, um so that’s 

... that’s cool. Um we supported them through ah through 

that, um ... um the log book, um ... a gentleman came in a 

few months ago and ... and um made a comment for having 

a bad day um as in the process of getting money out, oh it’s 

been a shit day what not and we’ve um engaged with why 

um and we made sure it was his last cash out. Those ... 

those sort of things, um yeah. 

MG Okay, and do you have a process when you give out a HPA 

wallet pamphlet, do you record that anywhere? 

 Um in the past no, ah we are now. 

MG Right, and how many of those pamphlets would have given 

out last year, a guess? 

 Um last year, ah six to twelve.  

MG Six to twelve. 

 Bit of ... bit of a guess there, yeah. 
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MG Yeah, and was there any ... once you give a pamphlet out, is 

there any ongoing monitoring or after care involved? 

 If a pamphlet’s been given out we’ve ... we’ve spoke about 

that in our ... um in our staff brief, we’ve given a pamphlet to 

whatever person what not. 

MG Yeah. 

 Ah so we’re all ... we’re all aware of what’s happened. 

MG Yeah. 

 Um and we are, as a team, monitor them and if it needs to 

be escalated, we escalate it. 

MG Yeah, so in the case of Morgan, a pamphlet was given to 

him, the after care and monitoring after that was done ... like 

how did you do that, was that just interacting with him and ... 

 Interacting with him, asking how he’s going, spend the time 

with him. 

MG Yeah. 

 Um, he was taking breaks from gambling, you know, so ... so 

we didn’t believe it was a problem. 

MG Okay. So correct me if I’m wrong but your ... in your view or 

how you have previously operated in the last year say, was 

that you were focused on demeanour of a customer? 

 That’s very simplistic but ... 

MG Yeah. 
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 But we ... we would ... we would look at them, we would 

judge them, we would judge their attitude, how they talk to 

us. 

MG Yeah. 

 Those questions, what not, it’s...  

MG Yeah. 

 It’s not just one thing, it’s a variety of things, yeah. 

MG Yeah. 

 Um it’s a quite a complex thing to go through when you’ve 

never met someone before. 

MG Yeah. 

 To judge, you know make snap judgements, what not. 

MG Yeah, so if they weren’t aggressive or if they were... 

 Rude. 

MG Showing ... obviously showing signs of distress ... 

 Yeah, rude, disrespectful um. 

MG Yeah. 

 Upset, taking phone calls, um making excuses. 

MG Yeah. 

 Um, um, um, how they deal with other ... other patrons and 

... and I guess the venue. 

MG Okay. 
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 There’s many things involved in it yeah. 

MG Yeah, but EFTPOS transactions over the bar, that was 

something that you didn’t monitor? 

 No. 

MG Or didn’t consider to be a ... 

 No, it wasn’t no. 

MG ... an issue. Okay, and finally, you didn’t consider high 

volume of EFTPOS transactions to be an issue because ...? 

 Well we weren’t  ... well I wasn’t aware of the extent of them. 

MG Okay, and would it be fair to say that you and your staff 

weren’t aware of the extent of that? 

 Yeah I think that’s fair to say, yeah. 

MG Do you have anything you’d like say or ... or add? 

 Yeah, I’d like just to ... just to ... Morgan was more than just a 

customer, everyone knew him, you know, we were 

organising ah his work function with us, he’d eat with us, 

we’d spend time with him um, um he was happy around the 

venue, around us, he was interacting with our other patrons 

as well. 

MG Yeah. 

 Um we take our responsibility seriously.  With how we run 

our venue.  Um as I said, we’re a people ah business, yeah, 

people’s welfare is ... is important, um, um, and we believe 

we’ve ... we’ve acted appropriately. Um ... 
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MG Alright, on reflection, do you think there was more you could 

have done? 

 Hindsight is wonderful.  Um, it really is. Um we’ve ... we’ve 

adjusted some of our um in-house rules with how we handle 

... handle things, um, um and made some adjustments 

because of this. Um but um that’s a normal daily occurrence, 

every single day we are ... we are looking at what we could 

do better, and making different calls on ... on that, so ... 

MG Tell me about some of the things you’ve adjusted? 

 Um we’ve taken um, um, um we now have an in-house rule 

of three tractions per day. 

MG Three what? 

 Transactions per day, sorry, getting a bit of a dry mouth here, 

lot of talking.  Three transactions per day. Um we’re more 

engaged in that process, we’re more ... we’ve ... we’ve got 

staff away from doing cash outs on other tills, so anyone 

wanting cash out is all going through one till um and 

therefore it’s been isolated to less staff, so less staff involved 

in handing money out, more communication with that. Um 

we’re recording more things, ah more incidents, we’re 

recording them. Ah there’s been more training given. 

MG Tell me what kind of incidents that you’re recording now? 

 Oh anyone that has a card or a help card is ... is ... is 

recorded, um anyone that is ah ... is ah suspected of any 

kind of issue, no matter how small, that is ... is recorded. 

Even if it goes no further. 

MG Yeah. 

 It’s ... it’s recorded, um ... 

00014

9(2)(a)

9(2)(a)

9(2)(a)

9(2)(a)

9(2)(a)

RELE
ASED U

NDER THE O
FFIC

IAL I
NFORMATIO

N ACT 19
82



 

 
Transcribed by Digitype   Page 33 of 34 

MG Yeah, and where are you recording this specifically? 

 Um in the ... in the log books. 

MG Log book okay. 

 Yeah, in the log book, there’s been a new log book come 

offline, it’s great, so it’s ... it’s more ... it’s easier, yes. 

MG Alright, and this is a practice that you’ve implemented now, 

how long have you had this in place? 

 Ah well since we were made ... made aware at the meeting 

with Sonya and Charles ah pretty much. 

MG Oh right. 

 We um had a chat with um I called  straight away, um 

had... 

 Just on the log books, they’re always had incident registers 

within the compliance folder and we’ve just redeveloped a 

different version of the log book. 

 Correct. 

 Which is something that sits behind ... underneath the smart 

operator till. 

MG Oh yeah. 

 So that’s what he’s saying about he ... 

MG Yeah. 

 It’s always been there. 

MG Yeah. 

 Just we’ve implemented a slightly different system in doing it. 
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 Yeah, so ... 

MG Yeah, okay, I’ll just double check, I think I’ve covered 

everything I need to. [39.18 – 39.41 pause] Alright, I think I 

might um stop the interview there, if you’re happy and have  

nothing else to add? 

 No that’s fine. 

MG Look I thank you for your time today, and I understand the  

circumstances of our meeting are quite sombre and it’s quite 

difficult to be here in these circumstance when you’re looking 

back after ah the passing of someone that you knew, Morgan 

Barrett, but I thank you for your time, and I’ll stop the 

recorder there. The time now is 10:31 am. 
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From: Morgan Barrett

To: Marty Greentree

Subject: re additive gambling of my husband Morgan Barrett

Date: Saturday, 25 August 2018 9:23:59 AM

Marty thankyou for your visit yesterday also for the lovely flowers it was
very kind.Yesterday was very upsetting and distressing for me which had
nothing to do with you personally it was a meeting that I needed to do I

Morgan Barrett
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From: Morgan Barrett

To: Marty Greentree

Subject: RE GAMBLING ADDITION OF MY LATE HUSBAND MORGAN BARRETT

Date: Monday, 27 August 2018 8:57:37 AM

Hello Marty sorry to bother you again I told my best friend about what
Ihad written to you and she tells me I need to write again.Ihave written re
the devastion re my husbands passing and the aftermath and what it has

Morgan Barrett
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Victim Impact Statement 

___________________________________________________________________ 

 states: 

1. That is my full name.  . I live in Kaiapoi, Christchurch.   
 I am the widow of Morgan Barrett.  

2. My husband Morgan and I were married 47 years. We have two sons, Paul and Matthew.  
3. Following the Christchurch Earthquake in 2010 we received an insurance settlement in 

excess of $450,000. This money was to be used to buy us a new house.  
4. I am making this statement regarding the impact of my deceased husband’s addiction to 

‘pokie machines’.   

 

Death of my husband 

5. My husband was found slumped over the steering wheel of his parked car by a passer by 
on 26 January 2018. He was 68 years old. His death was referred to the Coroner, and a 
Post Mortem was performed.  It was confirmed my husband suffered a heart attack.  

 

Discovery of the financial loss after the death of my husband 

6. Shortly after my husbands death my son’s and I went to the bank and discovered there 
was only $46 left in our account.  

7. It transpired that my husband was a problem gambler and had spent all of our money on 
pokie machines. He had spent $72,000 in the space of 9 months at a single venue,  

. 
8. All of our insurance settlement money was gone. This wasn’t just his money, was our 

money. He has left me with nothing.  
9. 
10.
11.

 

Coping since my husband’s death 

12.
13
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14.

15.
16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

 

Hope for deterrence  

22. I hope these court proceedings highlight the importance of harm minimisation policy in 
pokie machine venues. 

23. I hope taking this case stops even one family from going through the total devastation I 
have gone through. 

24. Pokie machines are an awful scourge on society. I have lost everything because of my 
husband’s problem gambling.  

 
25. I wish the staff at the  had considered whose money was being 

spent. I wish someone at  would take responsibility for not doing 
their job properly. I hope staff at all venue’s become aware that there are consequences 
if they do not do their job properly. 

26. My life will never be the same because of pokie machines. I don’t believe I will ever get 
over this trauma.  
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Realising the ‘strategic value’  
This prosecution has been identified as important due to its strategic value.  With reference to the 
possible outcomes what is the most effective way of realising this value as a catalyst for behaviour, 
legislative or policy change? 

• Deterrence  

• Serious regulatory offending that is miscategorised as lowly offence and penalty  

• Does the Regulator need to be more prescriptive around the content of venue harm 
minimisation policies that are used?  

Civil actions 
Pursuing the cancellation of venue licence.  Gambling operations drafted venue licence cancellation 
letters for  and four other venues which were submitted to legal but paused pending prosecution 
outcome.   

Possible issues: 

• Regardless of the success of the prosecution there is a strong case to be made that  has 
rectified its past short comings and has now implemented the reasonable steps to identify 
actual or potential problem gambling. (they now have the systems in place to monitor 
EFTPOS withdrawals and length of play)  

• When the prosecution concludes how can the secretary ‘not be satisfied that the risk of 
problem gambling is minimised’ and proceed with licence cancellation on basis of past non-
compliance that is no longer continuing? 

Other venues: 

 
Mr Barrett visited  42 times from 1 April 2017 to 13 January 2018. 
During that time, he made 128 bank transactions at the venue totalling $13,372.00.  
Mr Barrett transacted up to 15 times and spent over four hours at the venue. 
 

 
Mr Barrett visited  6 times from 1 April 2017 to 13 January 2018. 
During that time, he made 33 bank transactions at the venue totalling $4,216.40.  
Mr Barrett transacted up to 13 times (seven withdrawals from ATM and six as EFTPOS 
transaction) and spent over 6.5 hours at the venue. 
 

  
Mr Barrett visited  19 times from 1 April 2017 to 13 January 2018. 
During that time, he made 51 bank transactions at the venue totalling $4,558.00.  
Mr Barrett transacted up to 7 times and spent over 1.5 hours at the venue. 
 

  
Mr Barrett visited  13 times from 1 April 2017 to 13 January 2018. 
During that time, he made 69 bank transactions at the venue in the sum of $4,558.00.  
Mr Barrett transacted up to 14 times and spent over 4 hours at the venue. 

Recommend this aspect is re-opened and returned to Christchurch Operations team to complete any 
outstanding actions (venue manager interviews) and to align timing of any sanctions (warning?) that 
might be applied with the conclusion of the prosecution. 

 

9(2)(a)

9(2)(a)

9(2)(a)
9(2)(a)

9(2)(a)
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CAPTION SHEET 
 

 
Department of Internal Affairs v   
          
        
        Kaiapoi 
        OCC: Venue manager 

 
 
 
Being a venue manager of the holder of a class 4 venue licence, failed to take all 
reasonable steps to ensure that the problem gambling policy was used to identify a 
potential or actual problem gambler, including Morgan Barrett. 
 
Particulars: 
The reasonable steps that  should have taken were as follows:   

1. Develop and implement an adequate system to ensure the number of 
EFTPOS transactions made by individuals gambling at the venue at which he 
was a venue manager could be recorded and monitored; and 

2. Develop and implement an adequate system to ensure that the length of 
gambling sessions by individuals gambling at the venue at which he was a 
venue manager could be recorded and monitored. 

 
Contrary to: Sections 308(4) and (6) of the Gambling Act 2003. 
Penalty:  A fine not exceeding $5,000. 
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9(2)(a)

RELE
ASED U

NDER THE O
FFIC

IAL I
NFORMATIO

N ACT 19
82



RELE
ASED U

NDER THE O
FFIC

IAL I
NFORMATIO

N ACT 19
82



 Page 3 of 9 
 

• Multiple ATM transactions. Research suggests that players attribute 

multiple ATM/EFTPOS transactions as a main contributor to a catastrophic 

loss. Be aware of players approaching staff for several EFTPOS 

transactions in one playing session. 

• Length of Playing Session. Research suggests that playing sessions in 

excess of 5 to 6 hours would raise concerns, especially if linked to a number 

of similar sessions per week. 

9. If a gambler at  was showing signs of problem gambling, the Policy required 

staff to approach that person and offer them information or advice about problem 

gambling. That information or advice must include a description of the “self-

exclusion procedure”.  The self-exclusion procedure involved prohibiting self-

identified problem gamblers, who had sought exclusion, from entering the 

gambling area for a period of up to two years. 

10. As part of their harm minimisation procedures,  was required to record in their 

incident book the details of what took place and the outcome for any problem 

gamblers identified in their venue. From January 2017 to 2018,  incident 

book recorded a total of three incidents but this did not include any entries about 

Mr Barrett, as he was never identified as a problem gambler. 

11. Also, as a part of its harm minimisation procedures, the defendant was 

responsible for ensuring that  conducted “a sweep of the Gaming Room at 

least every 15 minutes”, albeit the purpose of that being to identify underage 

persons. 

Reasonable steps  

12. The defendant failed to take all reasonable steps to ensure that the Policy was 

used to identify potential or actual problem gamblers.     

13. The reasonable steps that the defendant could have taken, but did not take, were 

broadly to ensure that there were adequate systems in place to ensure 

appropriate monitoring of the number of EFTPOS transactions and the length of 

gambling sessions.  

9(2)(a)

9(2)(a)
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Failure to record and monitor the number of EFTPOS transactions 

14. As stated in the Policy, multiple EFTPOS transactions were an obvious sign of 

problem gambling.  

15. Because a  staff member would always need to facilitate EFTPOS withdrawal 

transactions, there were multiple opportunities to observe obvious warning signs 

based on multiple EFTPOS transactions. 

16. However, at the relevant time, the defendant did not have a system in place for 

recording the number of EFTPOS transactions made by individuals gambling at 

  Rather, tracking the number of transactions made by each gambler relied 

on individual staff members’ memory of withdrawals. 

17. The scale of Mr Barrett’s EFTPOS went undetected for this reason.   

18. Accordingly a step the defendant could have taken was to develop and implement 

an adequate system to ensure the number of EFTPOS transactions made by 

individuals gambling at  could be recorded and monitored, including:    

a. holding regular staff meetings to discuss individuals showing signs of 

problem gambling; 

b. monitoring the completion of logbooks by the venue manager at the close 

of each day; 

c. recording in the logbook individuals making multiple EFTPOS transactions; 

d. requiring all EFTPOS transactions to go through to go through one till, to 

assist staff to recognise multiple transactions; 

e. having an in-house rule that limits individuals from making more than three 

EFTPOS transactions daily, making it easier to identify those demonstrating 

problem gambling behaviour. 
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Failure to record and monitor the length of gambling sessions by individuals 

19. As stated in the Policy, playing sessions in excess of 5 to 6 hours would raise 

concerns, especially if linked to a number of similar sessions per week. 

Accordingly, a step the defendant could have taken was to develop and implement 

an adequate system to ensure that the length of gambling sessions by individuals 

gambling at  could be recorded and monitored. 

20. The defendant did not have in place an adequate system at  for recording 

and monitoring the length of gambling sessions by individuals. 

21. While  staff undertook sweeps of the gambling area every 15 minutes, the 

purpose of those sweeps was to observe demeanour and interact with gamblers, 

rather than for recording gambling-session lengths. 

22. The failure to put in place any system for tracking playing session lengths was a 

failure to take a reasonable step.  Reasonable steps  ought to have taken 

may have included: 

a. holding regular staff meetings to discuss individuals showing signs of 

problem gambling; 

b. monitoring the completion of logbooks by the venue manager at the close 

of each day; 

c. regularly checking CCTV footage of the gaming area to record how long 

each individual has been gambling; 

d. checking on individuals during 15-minute sweeps of the gaming area; 

e. recording in the logbook individuals gambling for long periods of play. 

23. On 7 days, Mr Barrett spent between five to eight hours at  as set out in 

Annexure 3.  
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Defendant 

24. When interviewed, the defendant said the venue had known Mr Barrett for 

approximately a year and a half. Mr Barrett would visit  approximately three 

times a week and his visiting times always varied.  

25. The defendant said he did not regard Mr Barrett as a problem gambler because 

he appeared to be a happy customer that was always socialising with staff.  

26. When questioned, the defendant stated he and his staff at  were unaware of 

the frequency of Mr Barrett’s EFTPOS withdrawals, but they recognised him as 

one of their biggest customers. The defendant said an unidentified staff member 

handed Mr Barrett an information card about problem gambling.  The defendant 

admitted that  did not monitor EFTPOS transactions made over the bar.   

27. The defendant is a .   
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9(2)(a)

9(2)(a)
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Annexure 1 

Legislative background 

28. The Gambling Act 2003 (the Act) regulates the gambling sector in New Zealand. 

Gambling that involves gaming machines (commonly referred to as pokies) is 

known as class 4 gambling. Class 4 gambling in pubs and clubs may only be 

conducted by a corporate society. A corporate society is a not-for profit society 

that is an incorporated society, a company or a charitable trust. The corporate 

societies own the gaming machines in the public venues, and collect gaming 

machine profits to distribute to the community for authorised purposes. 

29. Section 308(1) of the Act requires corporate societies that hold a class 4 venue 

licence to develop a policy for identifying problem gamblers. Section 308(4) of the 

Act requires a venue manager to take all reasonable steps to ensure that the 

problem gambling policy is used to identify actual or potential problem gamblers 

within their venue. 

30. Section 3 of the Act provides that a purpose of the Act is to prevent and minimise 

the harm caused by problem gambling and to ensure that actual or potential 

problem gamblers are identified by venues and offered help. 

31. In the Department’s Report on the Social Impact of Gambling 1995, problem 

gambling is described as an occasional or regular gambling to excess to the extent 

that it leads to problems in other areas of life, particularly with finances and inter-

personal relationships. These problems can range from minor ones involving, for 

example, arguments with family over gambling expenditure, to problems involving 

a compulsive addiction to gambling resulting in major financial and inter-personal 

difficulties. 
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From:
To: Marty Greentree

Subject: The Council’s response to the OIA request for information regarding  in Kaiapoi

Date: Wednesday, 12 May 2021 12:53:07 PM

Attachments: image001.jpg
OIA Response to Marty Greentree at the Department of Internal Affairs regarding ~ 11 May 2021.pdf

Good Day

Please find attached the Council’s response to your OIA request for information regarding
 in Kaiapoi. 

I trust this answers your current query.
 | Governance Team Leader

Governance

Document 16

9(2)(a)
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CAPTION SHEET 

Department of Internal Affairs v  

Being a venue manager of the holder of a class 4 venue licence, failed to take all 
reasonable steps to ensure that the problem gambling policy was used to identify a 
potential or actual problem gambler, including Morgan Barrett. 

Particulars: 
The reasonable steps that  should have taken were as follows: 

1. Develop and implement an adequate system to ensure the number of
EFTPOS transactions made by individuals gambling at the venue at which he
was a venue manager could be recorded and monitored; and

2. Develop and implement an adequate system to ensure that the length of
gambling sessions by individuals gambling at the venue at which he was a
venue manager could be recorded and monitored.

Contrary to: Sections 308(4) and (6) of the Gambling Act 2003.
Penalty:  A fine not exceeding $5,000.

Document 19
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• Multiple ATM transactions. Research suggests that players attribute 

multiple ATM/EFTPOS transactions as a main contributor to a catastrophic 

loss. Be aware of players approaching staff for several EFTPOS 

transactions in one playing session. 

• Length of Playing Session. Research suggests that playing sessions in 

excess of 5 to 6 hours would raise concerns, especially if linked to a number 

of similar sessions per week. 

9. If a gambler at  was showing signs of problem gambling, the Policy required 

staff to approach that person and offer them information or advice about problem 

gambling. That information or advice must include a description of the “self-

exclusion procedure”.  The self-exclusion procedure involved prohibiting self-

identified problem gamblers, who had sought exclusion, from entering the 

gambling area for a period of up to two years. 

10. As part of their harm minimisation procedures,  was required to record in their 

incident book the details of what took place and the outcome for any problem 

gamblers identified in their venue. From January 2017 to 2018,  incident 

book recorded a total of three incidents but this did not include any entries about 

Mr Barrett, as he was never identified as a problem gambler. 

11. Also, as a part of its harm minimisation procedures, the defendant was 

responsible for ensuring that  conducted “a sweep of the Gaming Room at 

least every 15 minutes”, albeit the purpose of that being to identify underage 

persons. 

Reasonable steps  

12. The defendant failed to take all reasonable steps to ensure that the Policy was 

used to identify potential or actual problem gamblers.     

13. The reasonable steps that the defendant could have taken, but did not take, were 

broadly to ensure that there were adequate systems in place to ensure 

appropriate monitoring of the number of EFTPOS transactions and the length of 

gambling sessions.  

9(2)(a)

9(2)(a)
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9(2)(a)

RELE
ASED U

NDER THE O
FFIC

IAL I
NFORMATIO

N ACT 19
82



 

 Page 4 of 9 

 

Failure to record and monitor the number of EFTPOS transactions 

14. As stated in the Policy, multiple EFTPOS transactions were an obvious sign of 

problem gambling.  

15. Because a  staff member would always need to facilitate EFTPOS withdrawal 

transactions, there were multiple opportunities to observe obvious warning signs 

based on multiple EFTPOS transactions. 

16. However, at the relevant time, the defendant did not have a system in place for 

recording the number of EFTPOS transactions made by individuals gambling at 

  Rather, tracking the number of transactions made by each gambler relied 

on individual staff members’ memory of withdrawals. 

17. The scale of Mr Barrett’s EFTPOS went undetected for this reason.   

18. Accordingly a step the defendant could have taken was to develop and implement 

an adequate system to ensure the number of EFTPOS transactions made by 

individuals gambling at  could be recorded and monitored, including:    

a. holding regular staff meetings to discuss individuals showing signs of 

problem gambling; 

b. monitoring the completion of logbooks by the venue manager at the close 

of each day; 

c. recording in the logbook individuals making multiple EFTPOS transactions; 

d. requiring all EFTPOS transactions to go through to go through one till, to 

assist staff to recognise multiple transactions; 

e. having an in-house rule that limits individuals from making more than three 

EFTPOS transactions daily, making it easier to identify those demonstrating 

problem gambling behaviour. 
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Failure to record and monitor the length of gambling sessions by individuals 

19. As stated in the Policy, playing sessions in excess of 5 to 6 hours would raise 

concerns, especially if linked to a number of similar sessions per week. 

Accordingly, a step the defendant could have taken was to develop and implement 

an adequate system to ensure that the length of gambling sessions by individuals 

gambling at  could be recorded and monitored. 

20. The defendant did not have in place an adequate system at  for recording 

and monitoring the length of gambling sessions by individuals. 

21. While  staff undertook sweeps of the gambling area every 15 minutes, the 

purpose of those sweeps was to observe demeanour and interact with gamblers, 

rather than for recording gambling-session lengths. 

22. The failure to put in place any system for tracking playing session lengths was a 

failure to take a reasonable step.  Reasonable steps  ought to have taken 

may have included: 

a. holding regular staff meetings to discuss individuals showing signs of 

problem gambling; 

b. monitoring the completion of logbooks by the venue manager at the close 

of each day; 

c. regularly checking CCTV footage of the gaming area to record how long 

each individual has been gambling; 

d. checking on individuals during 15-minute sweeps of the gaming area; 

e. recording in the logbook individuals gambling for long periods of play. 

23. On 5 days, Mr Barrett spent between five to eight hours at  as set out in 

Annexure 3.  
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Defendant 

24. When interviewed, the defendant said the venue had known Mr Barrett for 

approximately a year and a half. Mr Barrett would visit  approximately three 

times a week and his visiting times always varied.  

25. The defendant said he did not regard Mr Barrett as a problem gambler because 

he appeared to be a happy customer that was always socialising with staff.  

26. When questioned, the defendant stated he and his staff at  were unaware of 

the frequency of Mr Barrett’s EFTPOS withdrawals, but they recognised him as 

one of their biggest customers. The defendant said an unidentified staff member 

handed Mr Barrett an information card about problem gambling.  The defendant 

admitted that  did not monitor EFTPOS transactions made over the bar.   

27.    
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Annexure 1 

Legislative background 

28. The Gambling Act 2003 (the Act) regulates the gambling sector in New Zealand. 

Gambling that involves gaming machines (commonly referred to as pokies) is 

known as class 4 gambling. Class 4 gambling in pubs and clubs may only be 

conducted by a corporate society. A corporate society is a not-for profit society 

that is an incorporated society, a company or a charitable trust. The corporate 

societies own the gaming machines in the public venues, and collect gaming 

machine profits to distribute to the community for authorised purposes. 

29. Section 308(1) of the Act requires corporate societies that hold a class 4 venue 

licence to develop a policy for identifying problem gamblers. Section 308(4) of the 

Act requires a venue manager to take all reasonable steps to ensure that the 

problem gambling policy is used to identify actual or potential problem gamblers 

within their venue. 

30. Section 3 of the Act provides that a purpose of the Act is to prevent and minimise 

the harm caused by problem gambling and to ensure that actual or potential 

problem gamblers are identified by venues and offered help. 

31. In the Department’s Report on the Social Impact of Gambling 1995, problem 

gambling is described as an occasional or regular gambling to excess to the extent 

that it leads to problems in other areas of life, particularly with finances and inter-

personal relationships. These problems can range from minor ones involving, for 

example, arguments with family over gambling expenditure, to problems involving 

a compulsive addiction to gambling resulting in major financial and inter-personal 

difficulties. 
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From: Marty Greentree

To: Andrew Holmes

Subject: Re: my email attached

Date: Thursday, 2 August 2018 12:36:13 PM

Attachments: image002.png

Hi Andrew,

I can call Paul today and meet with him tomorrow or Monday no problem.  I’ll review the
file to get up to speed in the interim, but I think Daniel has got his wires crossed somewhat
and is a bit loose with the term prosecution. As I understand it, although legal have
reviewed the file there are further interviews required before charges are laid.  Anyway I’ll
get onto it and make it a priority.

Cheers 

Marty

On 2/08/2018, at 12:04 PM, Andrew Holmes <xxxxxx.xxxxxx@xxx.xxxx.xx> wrote:

Hi Marty,

I wonder if this person calls me, that we arrange to interview him sooner rather
than waiting for Artie’s return.

I understand Paul works at Skycity

Can we discuss at some point

Thanks

Andrew

From: Daniel Dominey 
Sent: Thursday, 2 August 2018 11:37 AM
To: Paul Barrett
Cc: Andrew Holmes
Subject: RE: my email attached

Good morning Paul

Just sending you a quick update on the current course of the prosecution of one of
the venues related to your father.

As I noted in our phone call last week this was being handled by another individual
in our Regulatory Investigations team and currently that person is on leave for a
period of time so they can’t update you directly. I will continue to handle the
cancelation work for the other venues where your father gambled.
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However I have spoken to the manager of Operations, Andrew Holmes, in Auckland
and he is happy to chat to you about the prosecution case.
 
Therefore if you would like any further information about that part of our work
regarding your father please contact him directly on 09 362 5147. You can continue
to contact me for the other venues.
 
Sincerely
 
 
Daniel
 
Daniel Dominey | Gambling Regulator | Regulatory Services
Department of Internal Affairs - Te Tari Taiwhenua
Level 1, 120 Hereford Street, Christchurch
DDI: +64 3 339 5456| Ext: 4256
 
<image002.png>
 
 
 
 
 

From: Paul Barrett [  
Sent: Friday, 27 July 2018 10:55 AM
To: Daniel Dominey
Subject: my email attached

 
 
 
Paul Barrett l   Conference and Eventsl  SKYCITY Entertainment
Group

 Web
 www.skycity.co.nz

 
<image003.gif>
 
NOTE:  This email (including attachments) may contain information and communications relating to the
possible procurement of goods and/or services by SKYCITY.  However, nothing in this email (including
attachments) constitutes an authorisation or direction by SKYCITY or the relevant SKYCITY personnel to
provide any goods and/or services.  All goods and services to be purchased by SKYCITY must be detailed in
an official SKYCITY purchase order and are, unless otherwise agreed in writing by SKYCITY, subject to
SKYCITY’s standard terms and conditions of trade.  SKYCITY accepts no responsibility or liability
whatsoever to any person who provides, or purports to provide, any goods and/or services to SKYCITY in
reliance on any representation or statement made in this email (including attachments).   
Please contact the SKYCITY Procurement Department on xxxxxxxxxx@xxxxxxx.xx.xx  or SKYCITY’s
Procurement Manager if you have any queries.
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<image005.gif> Please consider the environment before printing this e-mail
This email (including attachments) may contain information that is confidential, proprietary and/or protected by
copyright. If you are not the intended recipient please immediately notify the sender, delete this email and do not
copy or use any part of this communication or disclose anything about it.

From: Paul Barrett 
Sent: Friday, 27 July 2018 10:53 a.m.
To: 'xxxxxx.xxxxxxx@xxx.xxxx.xx'
Subject:
 
 

 

Attention:This message has been scanned by a reputable SMTP Security Scanner and is believed to be
clean, but the sender gives no warranty that it is clean, and excludes any liability for damage caused by
unintended attachments. The information contained in this message and/or attachments is intended only
for the person or entity to which it is addressed and may contain confidential and/or privileged material.
Any review, retransmission, dissemination or other use of, or taking of any action in reliance upon, this
information by persons or entities other than the intended recipient is prohibited. If you received this in
error, please contact the sender, delete the material from any system and destroy any copies. Nothing in
this e-mail designates an information system for the purposes of Section 11(a) of the New Zealand
Electronic Transactions Act 2002, unless expressly stated otherwise.
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